
 

 

Town of Brewster  
2198 Main St., Brewster, MA 02631 

(508) 896-3701 
 

Drummer Boy Park Advisory Committee Meeting Agenda 
2198 Main Street, Room A 
February 6, 2024 at 6:00PM  

 
 

This meeting will be conducted in person at the time and location identified above.  This means that at least a quorum 

of the members of the public body will attend the meeting in person and members of the public are welcome to attend 

in person as well.  As a courtesy only, access to the meeting is also being provided via remote means in 

accordance with applicable law.  Please note that while an option for remote attendance and/or participation is 

being provided as a courtesy to the public, the meeting/hearing will not be suspended or terminated if 

technological problems interrupt the virtual broadcast or affect remote attendance or participation, unless 

otherwise required by law. Members of the public with particular interest in any specific item on this agenda, which 

includes an applicant and its representatives, should make plans for in-person vs. virtual attendance accordingly. 
 

Members of the public who wish to access the meeting may do so in the following manner: 
 

Phone: Call (646) 931 3860 or (929) 436 2866.  Webinar ID: 835 3228 0815 Passcode: 551105  

To request to speak: Press *9 and wait to be recognized. 

ZoomWebinar: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83532280815?pwd=RmwzZ3hXS3ZKQnN4QVZoa1NHZS9nZz09 

Passcode: 551105 

To request to speak: Tap Zoom “Raise Hand”, then wait to be recognized. 
 

When required by law or allowed by the Chair, persons wishing to provide public comment or otherwise participate in 

the meeting, may do so by accessing the meeting remotely, as noted above. Additionally, the meeting will be broadcast 

live, in real time, via Live broadcast (Brewster Government TV Channel 18), Livestream (livestream.brewster-ma.gov), 

or Video recording (tv.brewster-ma.gov). 

 
Please note that the Committee may take official action, including votes, on any item on this agenda. 

 
 

Members: 
 

Katharine Scott, 
Chair 
 
Devin McGuire, Vice 
Chair 
 
Chris Ellis 
(Recreation 
Commission), Clerk 
 
Jillian Douglass 
 
Allyson Felix 
 
Jay Green 
(Council on Aging 
Board) 
 
Patricia Hughes 
(Nat. Resources 
Advisory Committee) 
 
 
 
Select Board  
Liaison 
David Whitney 
 
Town Manager 
Peter Lombardi 
 
Natural Resources 
Director 

Chris Miller 
 
DPW Director 
Griffin Ryder 
 
Recreation Director 
Mike Gradone 
 
COA Director 
Elton Cutler 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
2. Declaration of a Quorum 
3. Meeting Participation Statement 
4. Recording Statement: As required by the Open Meeting Law we are informing you that the Town will be 

video and audio taping as well as broadcasting this public meeting.  In addition, if anyone else intends to either 
video or audio tape this meeting they are required to inform the chair. 

5. Public Announcements and Comment: Members of the public may address the Committee on 

matters not on the meeting’s agenda for a maximum of 3-5 minutes at the Chair’s discretion. The Committee 
will not reply to statements made or answer questions raised during public comment but may add items 
presented to a future agenda. 

6. Update on Community Survey 
7. Clarify Role of Committee and Discuss Format of Town Meeting Report 
8. Update on Sea Camps Community Planning Process 
9. Approve Meeting Minutes: January 2 and January 16, 2026 
10. Future Meetings: February 20 and March 4, 2024 
11. Other Matters Not Reasonably Anticipated by the Chair 
12. Adjournment 

                   
 
 

Date Posted: Date Revised: Received by Town Clerk: 

                                             01/31/2024       

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83532280815?pwd=RmwzZ3hXS3ZKQnN4QVZoa1NHZS9nZz09
http://www.livestream.brewster-ma.gov/
http://www.tv.brewster-ma.gov/


DRUMMER	BOY	PARK	PLANNING	SURVEY

Welcome	to	the	Town	of	Brewster’s	Drummer	Boy	Park	Planning	Survey
	
In	November	2021,	Town	Meeting	approved	an	updated	Master	Plan	for	Drummer
Boy	Park	based	on	the	recommendations	of	a	citizens	advisory	committee	formed	in
2020.	At	the	Special	Town	Meeting	in	March	2023,	Brewster	voted	to	refer	the	2021
Master	Plan	to	a	new	committee	for	further	study.		The	Select	Board	charged	the
new	committee	with	removing	all	references	to	improving	access	to	Wing	Island
from	their	recommended	plans.		This	new	committee	will	deliver	a	report	to	Town
Meeting	this	May.	

In	preparing	their	recommendations,	the	Drummer	Boy	Park	Advisory	Committee	is
conducting	this	survey	to	find	out	what	Brewster	citizens	think	are	the	important
improvements	to	make	at	the	park	in	the	next	few	years.	Questions	are	organized
around	four	main	issues	in	the	Master	Plan:	parking,	stormwater	management,
accessibility,	and	amenities.	This	map	shows	the	current	conditions	at	Drummer	Boy
Park	and	the	adjacent	properties	owned	by	the	Town	of	Brewster,	the	Brewster
Historical	Society,	and	the	Brewster	Conservation	Trust.	
	
The	survey	should	take	about	5-10	minutes	to	complete.		You	can	skip	a	section	by
clicking	on	the	"NEXT"	button	at	the	bottom	of	a	page.
	
All	survey	responses	will	be	anonymous.		The	survey	closes	on	February	14th.	
	
If	you	have	questions	about	the	survey,	please	contact	the	Town	Manager	at
townmanager@brewster-ma.gov		
	
For	more	information	about	the	Drummer	Boy	Park	Advisory	Committee,	please
check	out	the	committee	page	on	the	Town	Website.	
	
The	committee	recently	requested	updated	cost	estimates	for	the	scope	of	work
originally	proposed	in	the	2021	Plan	to	help	inform	decision	making.		This	new
information	is	available	on	the	committee	page.		The	committee	has	not	decided
what	they	will	recommend	to	Town	Meeting	in	May	2024.
	
Thank	you	for	sharing	your	opinions	and	ideas.	The	Committee	values	your	input!
	
	

https://www.brewster-ma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6286/f/uploads/drummer_boy_park_master_plan_final_october_2021_sm_1.pdf
https://www.brewster-ma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6286/f/uploads/drummer_boy_park_existing_conditions_04.20.21.pdf
mailto:townmanager@brewster-ma.gov
https://www.brewster-ma.gov/drummer-boy-park-advisory-committee
https://www.brewster-ma.gov/drummer-boy-park-advisory-committee


DRUMMER	BOY	PARK	PLANNING	SURVEY

Please	tell	us	about	yourself.....

What	is	your	age	group?	

15-25

26-40

41-60

61-80

81+

Are	you	a	....	

Full-time	resident	of	Brewster?

Part-time	resident	of	Brewster?

How	long	have	you	lived	in	Brewster?	

5	years	or	less

6-10	years

11-20	years

More	than	20	years

*	How	often	do	you	visit	Drummer	Boy	Park?	

Frequently	(at	least	a	few	times	each	month)

Sometimes	(several	times	a	year)

Occasionally	(once	or	twice	a	year)

Never



DRUMMER	BOY	PARK	PLANNING	SURVEY

What	do	you	like	to	do	at	Drummer	Boy	Park?
Check	all	that	apply.

Walk	or	run	on	the	paved	paths

Walk	the	woodland	trail

Picnic

Visit	the	playground

Play	on	the	grassy	fields

Walk	a	dog

Participate	in	organized	group	activities	(such	as	exercise,	book	groups,	meetings)

Meet	and	visit	with	friends	/	family

Enjoy	the	vista

Attend	events	(such	as	Brewster	Band	Concerts,	Fairs,	Brewster	Conservation	Day,	Holiday	Tree
lighting)

Visit	the	Historic	Village	and	the	Windmill

Visit	Whale	Rock	and	the	trail	on	Windmill	Meadow

Visit	the	Cedar	Ridge	Reserve

Other	(please	specify)



DRUMMER	BOY	PARK	PLANNING	SURVEY

If	you	did	go	to	Drummer	Boy	Park,	what	would	you	like	to	do?
Check	all	that	apply.

Walk	or	run	on	the	paved	paths

Walk	the	woodland	trail

Picnic

Visit	the	playground

Play	on	the	grassy	fields

Walk	a	dog

Participate	in	organized	group	activities	(such	as	exercise,	book	groups,	meetings)

Meet	and	visit	with	friends	/	family

Enjoy	the	vista

Attend	events	(such	as	Brewster	Band	Concerts,	Fairs,	Brewster	Conservation	Day,	Holiday	Tree
lighting)

Visit	the	Historic	Village	and	the	Windmill

Visit	Whale	Rock	and	the	trail	on	Windmill	Meadow

Visit	the	Cedar	Ridge	Reserve

Other	(please	specify)

None	of	the	above	-	I	don't	plan	to	go	to	the	park.



DRUMMER	BOY	PARK	PLANNING	SURVEY

PARKING
Currently	there	are	four	defined	handicapped	parking	spaces	but	no	other	marked
parking	spaces.	Visitors	park	on	the	pavement	around	the	circle	or	on	the	grass
beside	the	paved	area.	Currently	there	are	about	45	informal	parking	spaces	in	total.
Visitors	sometimes	also	park	on	the	grassy	areas.	Major	events	at	Drummer	Boy
generally	have	organized	parking	arrangements	on	the	fields	that	are	approved	by
the	Town	in	advance.	Tour	buses,	particularly	in	the	Fall,	park	on	the	paved	areas	as
well.

VERY
DISSATISFIED DISSATISFIED NEUTRAL SATISFIED VERY	SATISFIED

Overall	how	satisfied	are	you	with	the	current	parking	situation	at	Drummer	Boy
Park?	

	 NOT
IMPORTANT

SLIGHTLY
IMPORTANT

MODERATELY
IMPORTANT

VERY	
IMPORTANT

DON'T
KNOW

Designating	and	marking	paved
parking	spots	to	improve	safety,
circulation,	and	availability	of
parking	spaces

Using	materials	other	than	asphalt
pavement,	such	as	crushed	stone	or
permeable	pavement	or	pavers,	for
parking	areas

Maintaining	a	similar	number	of
parking	spaces	as	available	now

Adding	curbing	to	prevent	parking
on	grassy	fields	(except	for	planned
large	events)

Making	no	changes	to	the	informal
parking	arrangement	currently
available

Please	tell	us	what	you	think	about	each	of	the	following	to	manage	parking	at
Drummer	Boy	Park.	



Any	other	comments	about	parking?	



DRUMMER	BOY	PARK	PLANNING	SURVEY

STORMWATER	MANAGEMENT
Currently,	there	are	no	formal	stormwater	management	features	or	facilities	at	the
park.	As	shown	here,	during	heavy	rain	events,	water	often	floods	portions	of	the
park	and	temporarily	ponds	to	the	south	of	the	paved	area	and	adjacent	to	the
playground,	making	some	areas	of	the	park	temporarily	unusable.	If	certain
improvements	are	made	at	the	park	(for	example,	playground	and/or	parking),	the
Town	will	be	required	to	improve	drainage	to	comply	with	Brewster's	Stormwater
Management	Bylaw.	

VERY
DISSATISFIED DISSATISFIED NEUTRAL SATISFIED VERY	SATISFIED

Overall	how	satisfied	are	you	with	the	current	stormwater	conditions	at	Drummer
Boy	Park?	

	 NOT
IMPORTANT

SLIGHTLY
IMPORTANT

MODERATELY
IMPORTANT

VERY	
IMPORTANT

DON'T
KNOW

Establishing	stormwater
management	features	(drainage
improvements	such	as	catch
basins)	to	minimize	flooding	and
ponding	and	to	remove	stormwater
from	heavily	used	areas

Using	a	variety	of	alternative
stormwater	management
techniques,	including	"green"
techniques	such	as	rain	gardens
and	vegetative	swales	wherever
possible

Please	tell	us	how	important	you	think	each	of	the	following	is	to	improve
stormwater	management.	

Any	other	comments	about	stormwater	management?	

https://www.brewster-ma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6286/f/uploads/dbp_stormwater_drainage_01.24.pdf


DRUMMER	BOY	PARK	PLANNING	SURVEY

ACCESSIBILITY	AND	CONNECTIVITY
The	park	features	a	network	of	paved	paths	(approximately	¼	mile)	to	improve
access	for	all	visitors.	The	Town	has	also	created	a	woodland	trail	on	the	western
side	of	the	park,	although	roots	can	make	walking	difficult	at	times.	The	park	is
bounded	by	Brewster	Historical	Society	(Historical	Village)	and	Brewster
Conservation	Trust	(Windmill	Meadow)	properties	to	the	west	and	by	the	Town-
owned	Cedar	Ridge	Reserve	to	the	east.	However,	currently	there	are	no	formal
connections	to	these	properties.	The	Select	Board	has	charged	the	new	committee
with	removing	all	references	to	improving	access	to	Wing	Island	from	their
recommended	plans.

VERY
DISSATISFIED DISSATISFIED NEUTRAL SATISFIED VERY	SATISFIED

Overall	how	satisfied	are	you	with	current	accessibility	and	connections	to	adjacent
properties	at	Drummer	Boy	Park?	



	 NOT
IMPORTANT

SLIGHTLY
IMPORTANT

MODERATELY
IMPORTANT

VERY	
IMPORTANT

DON'T
KNOW

Extending	the	current	network	of
paved	paths

Adding	distance	markers	along	the
paved	paths

Placing	additional	benches	at
spaced	intervals	for	those	with
mobility	challenges

Making	the	woodland	trail	more
accessible

Establishing	more	formal
connections	to	the	Brewster
Historical	Society	and	Brewster
Conservation	Trust	properties

Creating	a	trail	to	the	adjacent
Cedar	Ridge	property

Selectively	clearing	some
understory	vegetation	and	invasive
species	to	enhance	the	marsh	and
bay	views

Selectively	clearing	some	trees	and
shrubs	along	Route	6A	to	enhance
the	roadside	view

Please	tell	us	how	important	you	think	each	of	the	following	improvements	is	to	deal
with	accessibility	and	connectivity	at	the	park.	

Any	other	comments	about	improving	accessibility	and	connectivity?	



DRUMMER	BOY	PARK	PLANNING	SURVEY

AMENITIES
Drummer	Boy	Park	currently	includes	several	amenities	such	as	a	gazebo,
playground,	picnic	tables,	seasonal	port-a-potties,	bike	racks,	benches,	and	large
open	fields	for	community	use.	The	playground	is	located	near	a	wetland.	In
addition,	there	is	a	deteriorated	building	-	the	former	gift	shop	now	used	for	storage
–	between	the	circle	and	the	playground	which	is	not	open	to	the	public	and	needs
renovation	if	it	is	to	be	used.	In	2023,	from	mid-May	to	mid-August,	there	were	eight
fairs	or	similar	large	events	on	weekends.

VERY
DISSATISFIED DISSATISFIED NEUTRAL SATISFIED VERY	SATISFIED

Overall	how	satisfied	are	you	with	the	current	amenities	at	Drummer	Boy	Park?	



	 NOT
IMPORTANT

SLIGHTLY
IMPORTANT

MODERATELY
IMPORTANT

VERY
IMPORTANT

DON'T
KNOW

Building	an	ADA	compliant	covered
pavilion	with	picnic	tables	on	the
site	of	the	current	storage	building

Putting	in	year-round	toilet
facilities

Installing	a	water	station

Relocating	and	renovating	the
playground	to	be	ADA	compliant
and	closer	to	the	shade	pavilion	for
better	drainage

Upgrading	or	improving	the
bandstand	/	gazebo

Adding	appropriately	sized	signage
to	identify	all	of	the	amenities	at
the	park

Adding	appropriately	sized	signage
to	explain	the	history	and	ecology
of	the	area

Adding	a	viewing	platform
overlooking	the	marsh

Moving	some	large	events	to	other
locations	in	town

Please	tell	us	how	important	you	think	each	of	the	following	improvements	to
amenities	is	at	the	park.	

Any	other	comments	about	improving	amenities	at	the	park?	



DRUMMER	BOY	PARK	PLANNING	SURVEY

Thank	you	for	your	time	and	input!
	
Once	you	hit	the	"Done"	button,	you	will	not	be	able	to	return	to	the	survey.		

If	you	have	any	questions,	please	contact	the	Town	Manager:
townmanager@brewster-ma.gov

Stay	tuned	for	more	information	from	the	Drummer	Boy	Park	Advisory
Committee	at:		
https://www.brewster-ma.gov/drummer-boy-park-advisory-committee	

mailto:townmanager@brewster-ma.gov
https://www.brewster-ma.gov/drummer-boy-park-advisory-committee


N

©
 
2

0
2

0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' BUFFER ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' BUFFER ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' BUFFER ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' BUFFER ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACANT GIFT SHOP, CONCRETE SLAB ON GRADE, NO PLUMBING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAYGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAZEBO

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
APRIL 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO PRIVATE RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLD KINGS HIGHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
WING ISLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA 100 YEAR FLOOD BOUNDARY BFE = 14

AutoCAD SHX Text
     CDM SMITH ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.      REUSE OF DOCUMENTS:  THESE DOCUMENTS AND DESIGNS PROVIDED BY PROFESSIONAL SERVICE, INCORPORATED HEREIN, ARE THE PROPERTY OF CDM SMITH AND ARE NOT TO BE USED, IN WHOLE OR PART, FOR ANY OTHER PROJECT WITHOUT THE WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION OF CDM SMITH. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUIVETT CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NATURE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEATING AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEATING AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODED PARCEL  (BREWSTER CONSERVATION COMMISSION)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLD HIGGINS FARM WINDMILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDMILL VILLAGE  (BREWSTER CONSERVATION TRUST)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRUMMER BOY PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF BREWSTER, MA

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTRANCE SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WING ISLAND TRAIL - CONNECTS 6A TO WING ISLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAPE COD MUSEUM OF NATURAL HISTORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINE HILL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDWARDS DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHALE ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVENT PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUTTERFLY NATURE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: AERIAL IMAGE OBTAINED BY GOOGLE MAPS IS APPROXIMATELY SCALED.  PROPERTY LINE INFORMATION OBTAINED BY TOWN GIS AND MAY NOT MATCH AERIAL IMAGE



Drummer Boy Park 

Stormwater & Drainage Photos

Existing Conditions During Rain Events









 

 

Town of Brewster 
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 

townmanager@brewster-ma.gov 

 
     

MEMORANDUM 
 
FROM: Peter Lombardi, Town Manager 
RE: Updated Cost Estimates for 2021 Drummer Boy Park Master Plan 
DATE: January 2024 

 
As the Drummer Boy Park Advisory Committee prepares to develop their report to Town 
Meeting in May 2024, they requested updated pricing on the cost estimates included in 
the 2021 Master Plan.  The original plan anticipated the project would be divided into 
two phases: 

1. Parking & Access Drive Improvements, Stormwater/Drainage Improvements 
(including rain gardens), Enhanced Connectivity (expanded paved walking 
paths), and Selective Amenities (eg. replacing existing maintenance building with 
new open-air pavilion structure) 

2. Playground Replacement, Remaining Stormwater/Drainage, and Remaining 
Connectivity Improvements 

 
In 2021, Phase I was estimated to cost about $1.25M and Phase II was expected to 
cost about $900k – see pages 25-28 of the plan.  These estimates included a 25% 
contingency and 15% for engineering, plus additional soft costs related to the planned 
improvements.   
 
The updated cost estimates for Phase I are attached.  For comparison purposes, the 
scope of work for this phase remains the same as what was included in the 2021 plan.  
These revised Phase I estimates reflect a $1.7M cost, which now includes a 30% 
contingency.  Our engineering consultants further advised that we should assume 
Phase II as proposed in the 2021 plan, will cost about $1.25M.  Some of these cost 
increases reflect current market conditions.  Contingency amounts have also been 
increased due to a more conservative approach to developing cost estimates. The 
committee will use this information to help inform their report to Town Meeting in May 
2024. 
 
 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 
 
 
 



Project: Drummer Boy Park Phase I
Location: Brewster, MA

Submission: Initial Opinion of Probable Costs
Date: 1/12/2024 Estimator: MCL Checked By: RAC

Unit Quantity Unit Cost Total Cost

SITE PREPARATION
Site Mobilization / Demobilization LS 1               35,000.00$                35,000.00$                    

Subtotal Site Preparation (Rounded) 35,000.00$                

EROSION CONTROL
Silt Sock Erosion Control LS 1               18,000.00$                18,000.00$                    
Catch Basin Inserts (silt sack) EA 3               375.00$                     1,125.00$                      
Temporary Construction Fence and Safety Signage LS 1               7,500.00$                  7,500.00$                      
Temp. Entrance Mat For Truck Traffic & Sediment Control EA 1               3,250.00$                  3,250.00$                      

Subtotal Erosion Control (Rounded) 30,000.00$                

SITE DEMOLITION
Remove and Dispose Asphalt SY 3,460         9.00$                         31,140.00$                    
Remove and Dispose Cape Cod Berm LF 540            5.00$                         2,700.00$                      

Subtotal Site Demo (Rounded) 34,000.00$                

SITE CLEARING
Clear & Grub Site LS 1               12,500.00$                12,500.00$                    
Cutting and disposing isolated trees and stumps (4"- 24") EA 8               500.00$                     4,000.00$                      
Cutting and disposing isolated trees and stumps (24'' or plus) EA 1               1,500.00$                  1,500.00$                      

Subtotal Site Clearing (Rounded) 18,000.00$                

EARTHWORKS
Excavate and Relocate Material CY 1,500         30.00$                       45,000.00$                    

Subtotal Earthworks (Rounded) 45,000.00$                

DRAINAGE COLLECTION SYSTEM
12-inch HDPE LF 112            85.00$                       9,520.00$                      
18-inch HDPE LF 58             130.00$                     7,540.00$                      
4" PVC Perforated Underdrain LF 150            55.00$                       8,250.00$                      
4' Dia. Manholes EA 3               7,500.00$                  22,500.00$                    
Catch Basin EA 3               5,500.00$                  16,500.00$                    
Cleanouts EA 2               750.00$                     1,500.00$                      

Subtotal Drainage Collection (Rounded) 66,000.00$                

UNDERGROUND INFILTRATION CHAMBERS
StormTech  SC-740 EA 56             1,250.00$                  70,000.00$                    

Subtotal Infiltration Chambers (Rounded) 70,000.00$                

BIORETENTION & WETMEADOW AREAS
Bioretention Area SF 1,220         30.00$                       36,600.00$                    
Wetmeadow SF 1,850         20.00$                       37,000.00$                    
Sediment Forebays SF 272            30.00$                       8,160.00$                      

Subtotal Bioretention & Wetmeadow Areas (Rounded) 82,000.00$                

WATER
2-inch Copper LF 161            28.00$                       4,508.00$                      
Water Fill Station EA 1               10,000.00$                10,000.00$                    

Subtotal Water (Rounded) 15,000.00$                

LANDSCAPE
Loam and Seed SY 2,497         15.00$                       42,455.00$                    
Seed only SY 500            4.50$                         2,250.00$                      
Landscaping LS 1               20,000.00$                70,000.00$                    

Subtotal Landscape (Rounded) 115,000.00$              

Division 2-GENERAL SITEWORK 

Page 1 of 2 1/12/202411:52 AM



Project: Drummer Boy Park Phase I
Location: Brewster, MA

Submission: Initial Opinion of Probable Costs
Date: 1/12/2024 Estimator: MCL Checked By: RAC

PAVING & CURBING
3" Paving - Driveway and Parking Area TON 500            255.00$                     127,500.00$                  
Seed only SY 500            4.50$                         2,250.00$                      
6" Gravel for Bituminous Walkways CY 80             105.00$                     12,400.00$                    
Bituminous Walkways TON 80             395.00$                     31,600.00$                    
Pavement Markings LS 1               1,200.00$                  1,200.00$                      
Concrete Pavers SF 1,400         35.00$                       49,000.00$                    
Asphalt Curbing LF 1,060         22.00$                       23,320.00$                    
Granite Curb LF 160            70.00$                       11,200.00$                    

Subtotal Paving & Curbing (Rounded) 259,000.00$              

SITE IMPROVEMENTS
Bike Rack EA 1 4,000.00$                  4,000.00$                      
Renovate Existing Vacant Building ALLOW 1 275,000.00$              250,000.00$                  
10' x 18' Storage Shed on Concrete Pad EA 1 17,500.00$                17,500.00$                    
Accessible Portablle Restroom 6' x 6' EA 2 6,000.00$                  12,000.00$                    
Bench on Concrete Pad EA 5 3,150.00$                  15,750.00$                    
Nature Trail Accessibility Improvements LS 1 17,500.00$                17,500.00$                    
Signage ALLOW 1 12,500.00$                12,500.00$                    
Building Engineering Analysis and Design and Playground 60% Design ALLOW 1 200,000.00$              200,000.00$                  
Subtotal Misc (Rounded) 530,000.00$              

TOTAL ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COST 1,300,000.00$               
CONTIGENCY 30% 390,000.00$                  

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST 1,700,000.00$               

Unit prices provided are based upon typical 2023 construction costs and data available for MADOT District 5.   Unit prices are subject to change due to adjustments to 
material and labor costs, site conditions and inflation. 

Quantities provided are based on "Conceptual Site Plan, Drummer Boy Park Phase I," Horsley Witten Group, dated November 2022 and
"Phase I Improvements Plan," CDM Smith, dated July 2021

Page 2 of 2 1/12/202411:52 AM



 

 

Town of Brewster 
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 

townmanager@brewster-ma.gov 

 
     

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Select Board 
FROM: Peter Lombardi, Town Manager 
RE: Proposed Charge for Reconstituted Drummer Boy Park Advisory 

Committee 
DATE: March 30, 2023 

 
In Summer 2020, the Town received $33,000 in state grant funds through the 
Community Compact best practice program to develop an updated Master Plan for 
Drummer Boy Park.  Originally purchased by the Town in 1988, the first Master Plan for 
Drummer Boy Park was adopted by Town Meeting in 1995 and has informed the Town’s 
overall approach to the property since.   
 
With these grant funds, the Town hired a consultant, CDM Smith Inc., to review the 
park’s condition and uses, help develop plans and designs for expanded or alternative 
uses, estimate costs for such plans, and conduct public outreach regarding the park’s 
future.  To shepherd this important work, the Select Board formed an ad hoc Drummer 
Boy Park Advisory Committee charged with evaluating existing and potential future uses 
of the Drummer Boy Park property and developing an updated Master Plan to present 
to Town Meeting.  The committee was appointed in Fall 2020.  The seven (7) member 
committee was comprised of one (1) representative from the Recreation Commission, 
one (1) representative from the Council on Aging, one (1) representative from the 
Natural Resources Advisory Commission, and four (4) Brewster citizens at large. 

 
Given their proximity to the park and shared interest in its future use, representatives 
from the Brewster Historical Society, Brewster Conservation Trust, and Museum of 
Natural History were invited to attend and participate in the committee’s meetings on a 
regular basis.  The committee was supported by the Natural Resources Director, the 
Council on Aging Director, the Recreation Director, and the DPW Director.   
 
From December 2020 through June 2021, the committee met and developed a series of 
schematic concept plans that culminated in the presentation of a recommended plan to 
the Select Board in June 2021.   
 
 
 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 
 
 
 



 

 

The goals of the plan were to: 
 Preserve the character of the park and enhance the views of the bay 
 Collaborate with the Brewster Historical Society and the Brewster Conservation 

Trust in preserving the character of the complex and enhancing its use 
 Plan for increased use and provide additional access to and throughout the park 
 Identify park use areas 

 
The plan identified two implementation phases.  The first focused on improving parking, 
pedestrian access, and stormwater infrastructure.  The second identified amenity 
upgrades to the playground, gazebo, and replacing the storage building (old gift shop 
structure) with a shade pavilion.  Recognizing that the Town was then in the early 
stages of planning for a potential elevated boardwalk to Wing Island from Drummer Boy 
Park via the adjacent Cedar Ridge Reserve property, that possibility was referenced in 
the plan. 
 
The plan was presented to and unanimously adopted by Town Meeting in November 
2021.  Following the Town Meeting vote, the Select Board disbanded the committee in 
December 2021.  In May 2022, Town Meeting appropriated $75,000 to advance design 
and permitting for Phase I improvements as outlined in the plan.  The Town hired 
Horsley Witten to help develop their design plans and assist with permitting.   
 
In parallel with these actions related to Drummer Boy Park improvements, the Town 
secured $50k in state grant funding to advance design and permitting for a new 
boardwalk to Wing Island and a $30k contribution from a then anonymous donor via 
the Brewster Conservation Trust.  Town Meeting approved $50k for this project in 
November 2021.  To ensure coordination between the two projects, Horsley Witten was 
hired to assist in these efforts as well.   
 
In August 2022, the Town hosted a public forum focused on conceptual plans for the 
Wing Island boardwalk.  Many residents expressed concerns about this proposal over 
the ensuing months.  At the same time, Horsley Witten developed conceptual plans for 
Phase I improvements to Drummer Boy Park, seeking to formalize parking, improve 
drainage, and provide better and safer pedestrian access.  The anticipated costs of this 
work were approximately $750k.  In November 2022, Town Meeting did not approve 
the $255k appropriation proposed by the Town for Phase I, in large part due to 
concerns about the connections between this work and the proposed boardwalk.  
Following that vote, all design work was suspended and no further action has been 
taken in advancing Drummer Boy Park Master Plan implementation.  The Town 
continues to maintain the property, including making repairs to the playground. 
 
In March 2023, a Special Town Meeting was convened to act on three citizens petitions.  
Article 3 originally sought to rescind the Drummer Boy Park Master Plan vote by Town 
Meeting of November 2021.  Ultimately, Town Meeting voted to refer the 2021 Master 
Plan to a newly reconstituted committee to be appointed by the Select Board in 



 

 

consultation with the Moderator who would then report back to Town Meeting in May 
2024.  Although this process will be led by this new committee, there is currently no 
funding in place to support their efforts, outside of Town staff time. 
 
For the Select Board’s consideration, I offer the following draft charge for the 
committee: 
 
PURPOSE:  The Drummer Boy Park (DBP) Advisory Committee will re-evaluate the 2021 
Drummer Boy Park Master Plan and will deliver a report to the May 2024 Annual Town 
Meeting.  This report may include an updated Master Plan, but any such plan shall not 
incorporate or include any new means of access to Wing Island.  The DBP Advisory 
Committee is an ad hoc committee.   
 
APPROACH:  The DBP Advisory Committee will review the overall goals and 
recommendations identified in the 2021 Master Plan and will determine whether any 
changes are appropriate.  This review process should consider other recent Town 
strategic planning documents, including but not limited to the Town’s recently updated 
Open Space and Recreation Plan.  It should also account for ongoing community input 
regarding potential future public uses of the Sea Camps properties.  The DBP Advisory 
Committee will conduct public outreach and solicit resident feedback in developing their 
report for Town Meeting.   
 
MEMBERSHIP:  The DBP Advisory Committee will consist of seven (7) members to be 
appointed by the Select Board in consultation with the Moderator and will include: one 
(1) Natural Resources Advisory Commission member; one (1) Council on Aging 
member; one (1) Recreation Commission member; and four (4) members from the 
community at-large. The Select Board will make appointments to seat the new 
committee as soon as is practicable.  The term of committee appointments will be 
through May 2024.  The Select Board will appoint a liaison to the DBP Advisory 
Committee.  The DBP Advisory Committee will be supported by the Natural Resources 
Director, COA Director, Recreation Director, DPW Director, and/or Town Administration 
as necessary.  Non-voting representatives from the Brewster Historical Society, 
Brewster Conservation Trust, and Museum of Natural History will be invited to attend 
and participate as appropriate. 
 
Once the Select Board approves the committee’s updated charge, we will then post an 
announcement on the homepage of the Town website and on the Town’s social media 
platforms soliciting letters of interest from residents interested in serving.  The Select 
Board will then follow their standard committee appointment policy; however, in this 
instance, that process will also include the Moderator in the initial screening phase.  
Consistent with that policy, recommended candidates will be included in the FYI section 
of a future Select Board packet 2 weeks in advance of formal appointment. 



c
d

r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

p
x

Z  
cd

j
a

c°a
n

O

C
r

p
q
y

U
1

i
N

C
V

)    
V

)
     

N

V
)      

0
a

aaa

N
O
a
v

e
n

o
o

o
21

o
O

d

cffO
N

>
  

I'd
)     

o
o

O
o

a
o

4
m

m
a

7
j

0
74

c
o

4
J

le

ovmq14F   '    

Q
O

N
i
'
 
c
o
N

Uamommoru
C

o
v
j
+

-
 
 
 

p
Z

a
u
O

b
a

O
p

N
o

T
,   

o
V

1
b
o
o

rd
4)  

Z
Q

o
Q

c
p

I
a

N
m

0
4
)

p
4
-,    o

L
1
.

c
V

)
4

m
w

N
h

m

i
v
o
Q

v

aC:  a
a
o

C
L

W
o

o
O

N
o
o

5
o

v
i'

0
r
l

d
o

o
C

a
o

p
o

I
O

o
N

w
o

o
M

O

C
d

N

W
0

Q
0

b
b

a
Q

4
3

o
J

v
Z

a
)   o

0
0

a)    E
S

o
N

bjQ

C
d

P
o
o
l

H
o

z
i

o

O
a
.
' 
 
 
'

C
L

M

o
p

G
o

t

p
a
)     

O
o

c
o

u

o
Z

j
O

o
o

N
o

2
can

4
4

r
j

I
'
a

O
a
H

0
o

co
E

o
O

o
0
0

O
O

0
r

m
O

c
n

O
v
 
 
 
 

v
c

C
d

D

AO
O

C
d

411
Q)

x
r
m

m
q

C
q

or
n3

0
e
n

N
C

q
o

r
d

u
4

V
)       

J
N

J

O
ffl"

M
I

L
n

4
,m)

oCd
C

IO
Q

 
i

Cd
p

Q)       
U

)    
O

U
L

4
—

    M
N

L
.   

C
n

O
O

b
A

cd
P

,    
p

a
O

1)    
4
0

r
t

cd
C

d
O

N
M

c
n

C
a

)
 
 
 
 

a
)    

o

o
Pam,       

U
) 

0

L

O

O

J+
;

4)  
0

4
1

1
2

0
0

m
a

U

Cd'

w
C

d
y

v
m

*
w

w
d

v
,

O
O

o
V

J
i

o
F-

s
V
r
i

a
)  

U
L.    p

p
N

O
N

o
U

)       
O

u
i

QL4
4J

a
,    

a
)    

p
r
o

p
o

o
f
a
)

z
 
 
 
 
 
 

r
o

0
)    

a)    
a

o
n
. 

Euo
o

C
d

3i



m
)

a
1)

w
f
o

f

i
a

N
v
a
)
 
 

4
j

0
C

d      
m

4
4
i

O
V

E
M

(>
      

y
 

a
c
o

a
    

cd

W
o
o
l

o
w

n
(
 
 
 
 
 

0
a

O
      `~

a0i

1
      

o
L

cd
cdcd

w
H

o
O

cd

0
0

WWI
4

A
cd

C
:   

Q)
4Oloof

m
ro

0
C

d
Q

4
J

4
J

0

b
A

,      LOibyOv
R

7

c

0

N
v

o

O
i

C
d

x
`

r
' 
 
 
 
 
 

C
C

0
y
G

O
o
C

d
a

V
O

4
N

C()    
w

O
4)

F
4

J
g

O
4

0
1

m
j

M
I"  

a
O

y
y

4
J

0
o

Q
o

O
O

o
N

a
    

v
V

o
l

V
4

O
Z

a
O

       .  .
H

0
4

1
i

b
V

4

V
o

l
b

A
O

o
rw

O
Z

4
m

J
N

4J
O

4
J

C
d

9

C
O

V
,      

000000000a Q
O

b
c
d
Q

O
N

ti-,             
N

A
v

a
a
i

o
O

ne
u

Co
9

d
4
O

O
4
m

)      

O
CIW4

00
y
N

4
J

O
P

4

1
4
       ,N

U
U

d
b
O

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

o
J

O
N

L
L

I
3)      

V
)

p
O

O
p

C
Cd

cd       .N
O

y
a

O
O

ZJ
4

J
b

b
p

o
O

N
M

4
J

w
o
o
l

b
D

o
N

m
o

' fi'  
N

v
k

4
p
O

C
d

C
d

N
N

dcd
C

d

U
j

P
C

N
Q

0
O

4
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
 
 
 
 
 

o
k
0
`
 

f
l

N
o

O
4
1

W
y
,

F
M

cd
v
o

d
z

U
O

CO
O

U
Ild

N
F      ,     

iJ
LO

U
U

L
n

F
d
C

d
j

L
C

d
O

C
d

p
O

       +
,   

a
C

d
n

y
0

P
4

0
c
d

cd
cd

a
'

4
'

4
0

V
M

          
4
J

c.
O

c
o

o
E

-
-
,
 
 
 

j
g

Z
o

C
d

O
a

k
a

a
a
a

a
o

w
o
o
d
o
O

V
I
O

N
4

cd
o
o

a  
r.

o
a

0
V4

m) 
cd

^
4
J

0
O

V
O

4
4

m
)

0
z

toll"I
4
1

4
J

1
4

a
N

cd
O

N
i
+

 
 
 
 
 

N
  

a
i
P

O
O

b
O

n

a
O

O

Q

o
v

O
a

0
i

O
p

O
N

O
O

b
z

O
O

L
0

cd
d

I
m

O
V

M
I

4
J

C
d

G
V

M
J

O
a

O
d
C

d
O
c
d
y

P
O

0
4

a
)   PO

4
c

1
)     

N
C

a

O

cd      'd

j

O

NJo0
H

v
0

cd
O

o
U

J
'
 

Z
0

5
y

O

qyd
j

m
o

V
0

E    
cd

o
o

d
O
C

l
a

.
 
 
 
 
 
 

p
4
J

J
cd

p
v

c
cd

O
O

O
0

1n
cd
J
O

N
0

cd
cd

N
o

w
O

cd

a
O

wom
m

ol
0

o
0

o
a
)
 

C)       

C
d

O
o

O
O

4
J
O

m
cd

Z
moo

c  ., 
N

cd
rA

CO
4
JU

Z
J
O

cd
O
Z

Z
a

k
o

f
Z

J

O
c
d

LO
U

N
O

      '
d

w
n

O
O

cd

O
0

v

06104
0

o
0

a
U

C
a

M
E

M
O

ti
o+

J

o
o

b+
O

o
"
"
 
 
 
 
 

a
o

c
d

o
O

A
a
1

v
U

A
C

U
x

H
L

1
Ii



4
J

0w

ti
0

a
pol

4
a
l

0
o

o
0

v
c     

H
o

o
N

O
V4

C
d

4
141      

b
io

a 
4

a
 '      

o
O

c
v

4
.

5
c
q

M
E

li
cv

4
J

ti-,
r:J

t
o
C

l
)

4
J

4
-1

O
o

I
4
J

O
O

A
  ,

4
CdC

o
4
1

4
m

)
o

4m) 
O

o
0
Z

w
C

x
4J>1
Opqw

r

Cd
O

P
p
a
l
U

j
M

A
0

o
Vo

c
o

0
y

C
d

O
o     . 

r
o

cd
U

N
J
o

A
 "

       
4
1

P
  ,

a
i

m
v

0
U

0so
d
0

bA
   'd

0
U

o
U

a

QomCd'  
C%1

O
E-+     

U
H

PQ
j



















































































 

COMMENT 
The Brewster floodplain district was first adopted as a zoning overlay in 1985.  The bylaw has 
been amended over time as subsequent district boundaries and state and federal regulations 
have changed.  The amendments proposed in this article are designed to incorporate 
recommended changes from the state’s updated model floodplain bylaw.  No changes to the 
floodplain district boundary are proposed as part of this zoning bylaw amendment. 
 

Select Board: Yes 5, No 0, Abs 0 Finance Committee: Yes 7, No 0, Abs 0 
Planning Board: Yes 7, No 0, Abs 0 

 

DRUMMER BOY PARK MASTER PLAN UPDATE 

ARTICLE NO. 12:  To see if Town will vote to accept the 2021 Drummer Boy Park Master Plan, or 
to take any other action relative thereto. 
 
(Select Board)        (Majority Vote Required) 
 

COMMENT 
After purchasing the Drummer Boy property in 1988, a Comprehensive Master Plan was 
developed and adopted by Town Meeting in 1995.  That plan identified opportunities and 
constraints for the site and developed a programmatic plan for the property via a phased 
implementation approach. Some of these improvements, including the bandstand, playground, 
and walking paths, have been implemented. Twenty-five years later, Drummer Boy Park 
continues to provide diverse active and passive recreational uses for countless residents and 
visitors, and it remains a vital community asset. 
 
In 2020, the Select Board established the Drummer Boy Park Advisory Committee to review the 
park’s current condition and uses, develop designs for expanded or alternative uses, and 
estimate costs and funding scenarios for such future plans.  The resulting updated Master Plan 
was informed by feedback from residents and relevant stakeholders such as the Brewster 
Historical Society and Brewster Conservation Trust, who own adjacent properties. 
 
The goals of this new Plan are to preserve the character of the park, improve views of the bay, 
enhance existing uses, and provide additional access to and throughout the park.  The Plan   
also seeks to account for future increased use given the proposed construction of a new 
elevated boardwalk to Wing Island from the Town-owned conservation land immediately to the 
east of Drummer Boy.  Additional details and more information on the Plan can be found on the 
Drummer Boy Park Advisory Committee on the Town website or in the Town Administrator’s 
office. 
 

Select Board: Yes 5, No 0, Abs 0  Finance Committee: Yes 7, No 0, Abs 0  
 

59



60

 
60





Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

01.02.2024                                      www.brewster-ma.gov Page 1 of 5 

MINUTES OF THE DRUMMER BOY PARK ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

Date:  January 2, 2024 
Time:  6:00 PM 
Location: 2198 Main Street, Room A 

Committee Members Present: Chair Katie Scott, Vice Chair Devin McGuire, Jillian Douglass, Jay Green, 
Allyson Felix 
Supporting Members Present: Town Manager Peter Lombardi, Natural Resources Director Chris Miller 
Remote Supporting Members: Recreation Director Mike Gradone
Other Participants Present: Hal Minis (Brewster Conservation Trust), Ray Hebert (Museum of Natural 
History) 
Absent: Patricia Hughes, Chris Ellis 

Call to Order, Declaration of a Quorum, Meeting Participation Statement and Recording Statement  
Chair Scott called the meeting to order at 6:05pm declared a quorum, read both the meeting participation 
statement and the recording statement.  

Public Announcements and Comment 
None 

Review Information about Parking & Stormwater 
Mr. Lombardi noted that in the Horsley Witten high level analysis of impervious area, it shows that there is 
currently a little under 25,000 sq ft of impervious area in the access drive and parking area. This includes the 
gravel shoulder, about 6,000 sq ft of compacted shoulder along the perimeter. This is based on the most 
accurate representation of where people are parking.  As proposed, the area would increase to a little over 
31,000 sq ft in total. Included would be the access drive, parking area and sidewalks. About half the increase 
is related to the new sidewalks that don’t currently exist along the perimeter. This is about 13% of 
impervious areas directly related to parking. Mr. Lombardi reminded the committee this analysis was based 
on the conceptual design plans that Horsely Witten was working on, not the original Master Plan.  

Mr. Lombardi added for the purposes of the Town’s stormwater bylaw, it doesn’t have to be paved to be 
considered impervious, even permeable pavement is considered impervious based on the bylaws. The 
conceptual design that the Town was working on assumed that it was all paved surfacing, and the 
stormwater systems were designed to treat stormwater off those surfaces.  The stormwater systems 
designed were intended to help with treating runoff related to the paved surfaces and the areas directly 
adjacent.  

Ray Hebert observed that with the recent rain, he was surprised to see how much rain was coming from 
across the street down the hill into the park and how this can be addressed. Mr. Lombardi shared that there 
is a stormwater collection area just west of the main entrance.   



Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

01.02.2024                                      www.brewster-ma.gov Page 2 of 5 

Hal Minis noted that one of the elements of the original plan for managing stormwater that he believes was 
a good idea was the educational value, which demonstrates different kinds of stormwater management 
techniques. He believes this is an important element to retain.   

Chris Miller commented that because of the poor soil in the area, the ground gets saturated, and more 
infiltration cannot happen, in bigger storms the ground will be overwhelmed.  Mr. Lombardi added that this 
is an issue we are seeing across Town with major stormwater events. It is important to remember that 6A is 
a state road, any changes to drainage would require an involved design and approval process.  

Ray Hebert shared a new kind of thinking, basically a rain garden with a mound of “sponge” that cleans and 
catches the water, he suggests looking into them and include in the thought process.   

Mr. Miller noted that in recent projects in Town, most recently at Lond Pond, started at the top and put in 
catch basins and drainage areas, so that water is caught at multiple places as it runs downhill.  This does not 
catch every bit of the water but is being treated the best we can. Also, at the Long Pond parcel put in a 
vegetative swale that will hold the water more in larger rainstorms and go into vegetation and move out 
through wetland area before it goes to Long Pond. Mr. Miller stated that at Drummer Boy Park there isn’t a 
lot of elevation change to get water to flow where we want it.  In looking at the original plan, there was 
discussion about additional vegetation swales, this is a great opportunity to demonstrate low impact, easy to 
maintain, nutrient eating stormwater options.    

Member Douglass shared her thoughts about considering locations closer to 6A and less in the center of the 
property where the pooling currently happens. She mentioned the properties on both sides of the park, 
Brewster Historical Society and Cedar Ridge, and if it has been considered for permanent parking for higher 
intensity uses at the park.  

Member Felix stated that when considering the survey and communication, it is critical that people 
understand how much water is an issue at the park.  Mr. Lombardi suggested using photos on the project 
page on the Town website to show what the park looks like in heavy rain events.   

Mr. Miller commented that the road needs to remain where it is as it is access from the State highway and 
doesn’t believe there needs to be focus on developing formal parking areas.   

Member McGuire suggested that the harms of pooling water would be an element of education to consider 
when presenting to the public.  

Mr. Lombardi noted that the last Drummer Boy Park Advisory committee was sensitive to community 
character and making any dramatic changes to what people were accustomed to. The view corridor across 
the meadow out to the Bay was important, which is why the plan included that the vista was enhanced and 
preserved.  Mr. Lombardi shares the concerns about shifting parking to a different area, this would have 
significant costs and esthetic implications. 



Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

01.02.2024                                      www.brewster-ma.gov Page 3 of 5 

Member Douglass commented that there might be parking spaces at Cedar Ridge, that would not impede 
the view. On the other side of the property, it is about 2-3 feet higher, that might have some capacity for 
pervious parking.   

Mr. Lombardi noted that there were three large areas identified in the plan that was approved by Town 
Meeting, in between where parking is now and 6A for drainage swales/rain gardens to treat some of the 
runoff and prevent it from migrating to the lower portion of the property. There was also at least one or two 
smaller natural drainage systems that were proposed adjacent to the playground to intercept the rainwater.   

Discuss 2021 Drummer Boy Park Master Plan: Accessibility, Connectivity, and Site/Amenity Improvements 
Mr. Lombardi noted that Phase 2 of the original plan, the focus was on expanding the existing trail network 
and providing better connectivity between Cedar Ridge, Drummer Boy Park, and the meadow through new 
paved paths. It also included proposed improvements to the gazebo structure, a new playground as well as 
replacement of the existing building either to reuse or as a new shade pavilion.  There were also plans for 
more formal restrooms and other smaller elements.   

The same footprint would be used for the existing building for the proposed pavilion, with the potential to 
remove the walls and keep the roof structure. Mr. Gradone added that if an open-air pavilion is created, 
essentially the playground can be moved away from the wetlands.   

Douglass on the pavilion the gazebo is raised up, the tendency of the water to puddle around the building, 
possibility with pavilion to be up higher than grade. Open under that, close it somewhat, air circulation like 
the gazebo and above that would be protected from water.  Miller the existing used have gutters, something 
that could be put into pipes and moved away from the building. 

There was discussion about signage at the park, the consideration is if a shade pavilion is built to use one 
side to post about amenities and information about the property and trails. The inclination is not to have too 
much sign pollution, acknowledging that there are opportunities to have interpretive signage to help educate 
residents and visitors.  

Updated cost estimates from Horsley Witten will be available at the next meeting for the committee to 
review.  

Mr. Gradone expressed the need to have an accessible pathway to the pavilion from the playground, as it 
should be ADA accessible and inclusive.   

Mr. Miller commented that Cedar Ridge Reserve is under the care, custody and control of the Conservation 
Commission and is a separate parcel. This committee would be the right body to make recommendations to 
provide connectivity.  Mr. Lombardi noted that the report of the committee for Town Meeting may say that 
there is interest in future potential phasing at Cedar Ridge and would encourage examination in coordination 
with the Conservation Commission and Brewster Conservation Trust who hold the Conservation Restriction.  



Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

01.02.2024                                      www.brewster-ma.gov Page 4 of 5 

Member Douglass asked if it is the purview of this committee to be working also with the Bay Planning 
Committee, as some uses may be more appropriate there.  Chair Scott responded that since the Bay 
Property Planning Committee is still in the planning phases it would be hard to coordinate anything at this 
point. Mr. Lombardi stated that information has been shared as to where the process is, including the 
analysis looking at the overall footprint for parking and community uses on Drummer Boy Park and for the 
entrance fields at the Bay.  This broadly means the Town could shift some of the events and activities to the 
Bay property if we wanted to in the future. Mr. Lombardi expects the uses at Drummer Boy Park to remain 
the same, and if anything is shifted off the property the uses will be less intensive than they are now. 
Member McGuire added the committee is not looking to add more uses but focusing on the improvements 
needed.  

Discuss Resident Survey 
Member Felix recapped that the committee had decided that about 15-16 questions as the ideal number of 
questions to have participation. The committee has identified four different primary areas: parking safety 
and circulation, water management drainage, improved accessibility, and site amenities. Mr. Lombardi 
added that to start there would be 4 to 5 high level demographic questions, so the survey will be closer to 20 
questions total.   

Hal Minis reviewed both the Vision Plan survey and the Next Step survey created for the Local 
Comprehensive Plan. He noted that the surveys included either a four-point scale or five-point scale asking if 
respondents agreed or didn’t agree with the question. In the comments people felt this type of questioning 
was too direct.  Asking if the respondent feels something is important allows them to give more of their 
opinion. Hal suggested using this type of questioning and volunteered to format the survey into a draft 
survey for the next meeting.  

Mr. Lombardi requested that each committee member send him 2-4 questions for each of the four areas 
discussed. He will then work with Hal to put into a survey format for the next meeting.  The committee 
charge outlines conducting public outreach in soliciting resident feedback in developing their report for Town 
meeting, and a survey is the easiest to get input from the most amount of people.  

Discuss Format of Town Meeting Report 
Mr. Lombardi stated that the report can take any form and thinks that as we are designing the survey to 
think about the end and work our way backwards, keeping in mind what the report should look like. The 
report should be something that can be easily referenced in the future.  The committee will need the 
feedback from the survey to decide on how to structure the report. The committee shared what they feel is 
important in the report including visual aids, current conditions, stormwater pictures, maps and a table of 
actions.  Mr. Lombardi noted that information will be sent out through the Town website and social media as 
part of the Town Meeting process.  Additionally, information can be posted on the committee page on the 
website.  



Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

01.02.2024                                      www.brewster-ma.gov Page 5 of 5 

Approve Meeting Minutes: November 29 and December 11 
No meeting minutes for approval available.  

Future Meetings 
January 16, February 6, February 20, and March 4, 2024 

Adjournment 
Member Felix moved to adjourn at 7:35pm. Member Douglass seconded the motion.  A roll call vote was 
taken. Member Douglass- yes, Member McGuire-yes, Member Green-yes, Member Felix-yes, Chair Scott- 
yes. The vote was: 5-Yes, 0-No. 

Respectfully submitted by Erika Mawn,  
Town Manager’s Office 

Approved: __________________ Signed: _________________________________________ 
      Date                       Member Ellis, Clerk



Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

01.16.2024                                      www.brewster-ma.gov Page 1 of 7 

MINUTES OF THE DRUMMER BOY PARK ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

Date:  January 16, 2024 
Time:  6:00 PM 
Location: 2198 Main Street, Room A 

Committee Members Present: Chair Katie Scott, Vice Chair Devin McGuire, Jillian Douglass, Jay Green,  
Remote Committee Members: Chris Ellis 
Absent: Patricia Hughes, Allyson Felix
Supporting Members Present: Town Manager Peter Lombardi, Natural Resources Director Chris Miller 
Remote Supporting Members: Department of Public Works Griffin Ryder
Other Participants Present: Sharonn Tennstedt, Ray Hebert (Museum of Natural History), John Depuy 

Call to Order, Declaration of a Quorum, Meeting Participation Statement and Recording Statement  
Chair Scott called the meeting to order at 6:00pm, read both the meeting participation and recording 
statement, and declared a quorum. 

Public Announcements and Comment 
John Depuy, 833 Main Street, commented that the reason that the committee exists is to find the most 
appropriate path for all to deal with the hot topics, at the time of the Town Meeting it was the boardwalk, he 
would like to see things move forward in the most pragmatic way possible. Mr. Depuy noted that the two 
important aspects were the boardwalk and the desire to preserve the large green space at Drummer Boy 
Park for the fundamental belief that green is better than developed. There was also a feeling that the Town 
had significant spending in its future, with the acquisition of the Sea Camps, rumors about school 
refurbishment and the inevitable pressures of inflation. Mr. Depuy applauds the process and intends to be a 
regular participant and conduit of this information. He thinks that using the old Local Comprehensive Plan 
that was voted down is a starting point. In the process that is considered he asks for the option to leave the 
park green and not spend a lot of money to be articulated, debated, and considered, and not only have 
development options.  

Review and Discuss Draft Community Survey 
The draft survey was shared with the committee, it includes demographic questions to start and then is 
structured into the four key areas that the committee has been discussing.  

Hal Minis was not available to attend the meeting, so Sharon Tennstedt was present to review the draft 
survey on his behalf, she was part of the Vision Planning Committee and has a lot of experience with Town 
surveys. Ms. Tennstedt reviewed high-level principles in developing surveys, noting that it should be kept as 
simple as possible and encourage people to complete it.  



Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

01.16.2024                                      www.brewster-ma.gov Page 2 of 7 

Member Douglass expressed that there is not an option throughout the survey for “do nothing”, to keep 
things the way they are today. Mr. Lombardi asked how she would like this represented in the survey? 

Member Ellis shared that he likes the survey and feels it is easy and accessible. The open-ended comments 
allow for the ability to provide more information. He believes that the “not important” option is very telling 
as a first option.  He suggested that on the opening page the link to “learn more” should open in a new tab, 
Ms. Tennstedt will make the change.  Member McGuire feels that the survey is well crafted as it hits the four 
topics the committee decided on. She inquired if there was some way to form a question that asks the 
community what is more important to them.  

Member Douglass reviewed the questions on the draft survey and again stated that some people may feel 
very strongly against adding anything further and believes there should be an additional question that asks 
this specifically, for example “there is no need for additional parking/pavement”.  She would like to give 
people the full spectrum, not just what the committee has thought of and believes it is important to include 
this option in all four of the main questions. Mr. Miller commented that if any work is to be done at the park, 
it will generate the need for stormwater control, under our stormwater bylaw.  

Mr. Hebert suggested that in the questions related to parking permeable should be defined or examples 
should be provided. The committee agreed to provide material options. Mr. Lombardi reminded the 
committee that a master plan won’t typically specify what materials are going to be used.  

Member Douglass commented that part of the criticism that the Town received previously had to do with 
the broad brush and not getting into the details. There are people in the Town who are interested in the 
details, asking when they would have the opportunity to be involved in the design. Mr. Lombardi respond in 
the design phase, which was what the Town has started in Fall 2022.   

Ms. Tennstedt, speaking as a citizen, understood that the article and vote at Town Meeting last March, was a 
request to review and revise the plan accordingly and was primarily in relation to the boardwalk situation. 
There were comments about the various elements of the survey and if there is a way to ask the community if 
they opposed the plan at the last Town Meeting what the reason specifically was, a way to try to identify the 
pain points.  

Mr. Depuy commented that the boardwalk was the primary issue, though there was a very meaningful 
strong desire to leave the park primarily green space, adding that some modification is okay. He believes the 
survey was a total miss last year and the will of the people as voted was overwhelmingly different than the 
survey. Mr. Depuy believes that providing information with details about the cost of the phased approach is 
difficult to get in a survey.  A small subset of people will complete the survey, which may not represent the 
whole issue. This is a nice questionnaire for what it is, but he doesn’t believe it really addresses the concerns 
of a lot of people.  



Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

01.16.2024                                      www.brewster-ma.gov Page 3 of 7 

Ms. Tennstedt asked the committee what is the objective of the survey?  Chair Scott responded to get 
community feedback on the four main points that the plan discusses. Mr. Lombardi added that the 
committee is tasked with, by Town Meeting, with reviewing the 2021 Master Plan that was adopted at Town 
meeting and bringing back a report to the May Town Meeting on that plan. The Select Board in developing 
the committee expressly took any references to Wing Island, improved access, or the boardwalk off the 
table, and this is stated in the beginning of the survey. The committee is to solicit community feedback, 
which is the goal of the survey, to understand where residents stand in terms of the park and what was 
purposed and originally adopted by Town Meeting in terms of recommended improvements.  

Mr. Depuy asked for clarification about the vote at Town Meeting. Mr. Lombardi stated that what was voted 
on at Town Meeting was to send the plan to a new committee, the Select Board developed the charge in 
concert with the Moderator which was consistent with what Town Meeting approved.  The Moderator and 
Select Board were involved in vetting applicants for the committee and the committee is to report back to 
Tow Meeting in May. 

Member Ellis commented that he feels the committee is moving forward in the right manner, the committee 
has discussed what they think is important and doing due diligence to report back to Town Meeting.  
Member Green added that the survey will help to narrow things down as to what direction the committee 
will go in.  

Ms. Tennstedt stated that an item can be included that essentially says, no changes or improvements to each 
of the 4 categories. It was agreed that the text addressing stormwater assumes the person wants 
stormwater management. Mr. Miller commented that he believed that the committee was unanimous in 
wanting to address the significant drainage issues that limit use of the park now and the question should 
address this concern. Mr. Lombardi added that there is an important distinction between stormwater and 
everything else, he believes that some question about maintaining status quo makes sense, but not under 
stormwater given all the conversations that committee has had. It was suggested to add text to the 
introduction that that the Town has an obligation to deal with stormwater management. 

Mr. Depuy commented that he believes that the question about stormwater leads the witness 
unintentionally and could lead to a situation where a person answers what they did not intend. Adding that 
everyone knows there is a water issue at the park and it should be explicit if it is in violation of a town bylaw.   

Mr. Ryder stated that the stormwater requirements will be a result of development, if pavement is being 
increased, there will have to be an increase in stormwater infrastructure to address it.  We currently have a 
sub-standard stormwater condition that could be addressed with potential improvements to existing 
conditions.   

Mr. Lombardi suggested the following statement: Certain improvements to the park would require 
compliance with the Town’s stormwater bylaw.  



Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

01.16.2024                                      www.brewster-ma.gov Page 4 of 7 

Member McGuire shared her concerns that there are obvious needs that need to be addressed at the park, 
the playground being one of them.  If we do nothing, this will lead to a different path for the park and is 
trying to understand what this would mean.  

Mr. Lombardi read the motion that Town Meeting voted on that Jillian Douglass read on Town Meeting floor, 
to be clear on statements made tonight: “ I move that the town vote to reconsider the vote to accept the 
2021 Drummer Boy Park Master plan taken under Article 12 of the November 15, 2021 Special Town 
Meeting and that the 2021 Drummer Boy Master Plan be referred to a new committee to be appointed by 
the Select Board in conjunction with the Moderator, to study and report to the May 2024 Annual Town 
Meeting.”  The charge for the committee is clear, to use the plan as a basis to report back to Town Meeting.   

Member Douglass believes that there is a decision of the Town as to how much we invest in one location 
given that if you invest in another location, the Sea Camps, you might have a better outcome. She is not sure 
this is coming across in the survey.   

Ms. Tennstedt commented that what the data is going to tell us is for those who respond to the survey, the 
degree of importance of each of these amenities and will give some sense of what is more important than 
others.  Mr. Lombardi added that the data will not necessarily be a straight comparison between amenities. 
The committee will have to interpret the information to figure out how best to deal with each of the 
elements in the plan.  

Member Douglass motioned to include a question under parking that there be no changes or improvements 
to existing parking.  Member Green seconded the motion.  

Mr. Lombardi stated that no changes or improvements to parking are listed as important or not important. 
Member Ellis likes the survey as it is and thinks the answers will be telling as what residents respond to as 
priorities. Member Douglass specified that there is not a “no” option for parking. Member McGuire pointed 
out that there is a “not important” option, and we are looking to see what residents find important and 
communicate what feels important so we can help drive towards a plan.   

Ms. Tennstedt shared that an option is to add an item at the beginning with a different scale that asks the 
degree to which they agree that parking needs to be addressed.   

Member Douglass amended her motion to add an additional statement asking in the survey whether it is 
important to citizens to address parking on the site or not. Member Green seconded the motion.  

Mr. Lombardi shared his concern about holding apart a separate question as it will be treated differently 
than the other questions. Member Douglass agreed and suggested adding the question in for stormwater 
management and accessibility and connectivity, there is already a version of the question under amenities.  



Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

01.16.2024                                      www.brewster-ma.gov Page 5 of 7 

Ms. Tennstedt reviewed the two options, one is to include text as an additional item in addition to the other 
four or add a completely differently worded item at the beginning, which would make the other answers not 
applicable. Member Douglass asked about the overall question under amenities about how satisfied the 
respondent is and if it is possible for this question to be included in the other topics.   

Mr. Depuy commented if it is appropriate to ask questions about interest in these topics without a price tag 
which might impact the answer.  We are asking people to vote at Town Meeting if they want something or 
not, without all the information. He suggested placing broad budget parameters to these things. Ms. 
Tennstedt responded that she does not believe the survey is the place to combine the two, as it adds 
another layer of complexity to the survey. While Mr. Depuy agreed, he feels it is material information in 
asking how one might think about something when there is a price tag with it.  Chair Scott commented that 
she feels this is outside the objective of the survey.  

Mr. Lombardi noted that the committee has talked about providing residents filling out the survey with 
information to get informed feedback, there will be a link to the committee’s page that has the 1995 and 
2021 plan that includes cost estimates. Adding that it might be helpful to put the updated cost information 
on the website.  Horsley Witten is putting something together before the survey is released on an existing 
condition plan from the 2021 plan.  

Member Douglass clarified that her motion was to add a statement or question similar to the one at the 
beginning of the amenities page that asks about overall satisfaction of parking, stormwater, accessibility and 
connectivity. Member Green seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken. Member Maguire- yes, 
Member Ellis-yes, Chair Scott- yes, Member Douglass-yes, Member Green-yes. The vote was 5-yes, 0-no.  

Review and Discuss Updated Cost Estimates for 2021 Master Plan 
Mr. Lombardi shared that Horsley Witten went back and looked at the early cost estimates developed by 
CDM Smith in their 2021 report. The methodology that Horsley Witten uses was a little different, but helpful 
to understand what the cost of each phase would be. The market has obviously changed in the past couple 
of years and Horsley Witten has taken a more conservative approach, recognizing that costing out a master 
plan is challenging. The CDM Smith estimates call out overhead separately, where Horsley Witten includes it 
in the estimating on a per unit basis.  

Mr. Lombardi provided a high-level overview, in the 2021 report, CDM Smith estimated $1.25M for 
improvements in phase 1 of the 2021 plan, Horsley Witten estimates the same improvements at $1.7M. 
Phase 1 was more of the site work, including stormwater and parking, phase 2 includes the primary 
amenities, where the major cost driver is the playground. CDM Smith cost estimate in 2021 was $920K and 
Horsley Witten suggested estimates is $1.25M.  The original costs were about $2.2M and now the costs are 
closer to $3M. Particularly with the phase 2 work, it was suggested that since it is further out and that there 
is little specificity in terms of design in the master plan, a healthy contingency of 30% is built in by Horsley 
Witten. There still needs to be clarification on the cost estimate to either renovate the maintenance building 
into the pavilion or build new.  



Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

01.16.2024                                      www.brewster-ma.gov Page 6 of 7 

It was discussed that the committee could recommend different phasing and/or components within the 
phasing as part of their report to Town Meeting. If a different version or elements of the plan are brought 
forward, we could ask Horsley Witten for help with cost estimates. Mr. Lombardi noted that the ultimate 
cost driver on playgrounds is surfacing, the Town is currently working with Nauset Youth Alliance on a new 
playground at Stony Brook Elementary and looking at costing as part of the Sea Camps Bay property, and 
costs are consistent to what the 2021 plan shows.  

Mr. Depuy shared that he lives next to Drummer Boy, and he regularly plays with his grandchildren on the 
playground, he would love to have an enhanced playground, but does get the issue of cost overall.  He stated 
that the ultimate objective of the group is to bring forward something that will get passed to make some 
improvement to the park, his opinion is that at a $3M price tag is a huge price tag with the other cost 
pressures and real needs in Town. He suggests that the committee make a recommendation for an economy 
option along with the $3M in upgrades.  

Member Douglass stated that after we get information back from the survey and start to know a little bit 
more about what community priorities would be a good time to tackle the phasing components, which 
would include the budget phasing as well. Mr. Lombardi commented that relative to phasing, cost is 
absolutely a consideration, but there are also practical considerations for making improvements. There is a 
reason why we prioritize parking and stormwater, we can’t make the other improvements and back into the 
infrastructure improvements. Typically, you frontload infrastructure and site work and then start looking at 
some of the improvements and amenities, being sensitive to price impacts along the way. 

Member Ellis noted that all things considered, it is very helpful to see the updated costs estimates, 
considering this is the only real public park and playground fully accessibly in Town. The $3M price tag is for 
all the upgrades, thinks it is good to consider options as we see what the results will be.  

Mr. Lombardi noted that it is important to know what financing options are available. Community 
Preservation Act funding could be used for some of the improvements.  The funding that was set aside for 
the project originally last year is not available anymore.  There will be more discussion about how each 
element of the plan could be financed. The paved pathways were largely funded with state grants, and there 
are similar opportunities available for some of the amenity improvements.  

Member Green commented that the estimates are good guidelines, and the results of the survey will help 
point the direction the committee moves in. At that point we can compare what people are looking to have 
done at what costs. There may be elements that can be done without major site improvements. Mr. 
Lombardi agreed, adding that we don’t want people to think this is the plan and this is what it will costs.  We 
need to be careful on how we share and convey the information.  



Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

01.16.2024                                      www.brewster-ma.gov Page 7 of 7 

Approve Meeting Minutes: November 29, December 11, and January 2, 2023 
The meeting minutes that are available to approve are November 29 and December 11, 2023. Member 
Douglass moved to change the wording in the last paragraph of the December 11, 2023, minutes.  Member 
Green seconded the motion. Member McGuire amended the motion to include “ensure people have the 
opportunity”.  Member Douglass seconded the motion. Member Douglass moved the minutes of December 
11, 2023, with the amendments proposed. Member Maguire seconded the motion.  A roll call vote was 
taken. Member Maguire- yes, Member Ellis-yes, Chair Scott- yes, Member Douglass-yes, Member Green-yes. 
The vote was 5-yes, 0-no.  

Member Ellis moved to approve the November 29, 2023; minutes as stated. Member Douglass seconded the 
motion.  A roll call vote was taken. Member Maguire- yes, Member Ellis-yes, Chair Scott- yes, Member 
Douglass-yes, Member Green-yes. The vote was 5-yes, 0-no.  

Future Meetings 
February 6, February 20, and March 4, 2024 

Other Matters Not Reasonably Anticipated by the Chair  
None 

Adjournment 
Member Douglass moved to adjourn at 7:54pm. Member Maguire seconded the motion.  A roll call vote was 
taken. Member Maguire- yes, Member Ellis-yes, Member Douglass-yes, Member Green-yes, Chair Scott-yes. 
The vote was 5-yes, 0-no.  

Respectfully submitted by Erika Mawn,  
Town Manager’s Office 

Approved: __________________ Signed: _________________________________________ 
      Date                       Member Ellis, Clerk


	Insert from: "Drummer Boy Park Existing Conditions 04.20.21.pdf"
	Sheets and Views
	C-1 Expanded


	Insert from: "DBP Stormwater & Drainage 01.24.pdf"
	Drummer Boy Park 
	Slide2
	Slide3
	Slide4

	Insert from: "Updated DBP Plan Cost Estimate 01.24.pdf"
	MEMORANDUM
	Drummer Boy Park

	Insert from: "SB Memo re. Proposed Charge for Reconsituted Drummer Boy Park Advisory Committee 03.30.23.pdf"
	MEMORANDUM


